
ABABABAB    
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
 

TUESDAY 2 NOVEMBER 2010 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declaration of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must also 
declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any items 
under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 4 

4. Responses to Recommendations Made by the Commission 
 

5 - 8 

5. Peterborough Women's Enterprise Centre - Engagement with Women 
in Rural Communities 
 

9 - 10 

6. Update on Speed Limits in Rural Areas 
 

11 - 14 

7. Planning and Policy Strategy in Rural Areas 
 

15 - 34 

8. Forward Plan 
 

35 - 50 

9. Work Programme 
 

51 - 54 

10. Date of the next Meeting 
 

 

 Tuesday 11 January 2011 at 7.00pm, Bourges Room, Town Hall, 
Peterborough 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Stephen Emeny on 01733 452347 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 

Public Document Pack



overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Over (Chairman), G Nawaz (Vice-Chairman), R Dobbs, D Sanders, D Harrington 
and A Shaheed 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: J Stokes, J A Fox and D Fower 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Stephen Emeny on telephone 01733 
452347 or by email – stephen.emeny@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



ABABABAB    
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES HELD IN THE FORLI ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 7 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
Present: Councillors D Over (Chairman), G Nawaz (Vice-Chairman), R Dobbs, 

D Harrington, D Sanders and A Shaheed 
 

Officers Present: Alana Diffey, Governance Officer 
Stephen Emeny, Governance Officer 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mike Heath, Commercial Services Director.  
 

2. Declaration of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 July 2010  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2010 were approved as a correct record. 
 

4. Responses to Recommendations Made by the Commission  
 
The report provided an update of the responses to recommendations made by the 
Commission at previous meetings. 
 
Several Commission Members had received complaints from concerned parents regarding 
the revised student bus service which had affected the journey time for Year 11 pupils 
travelling from Eye Village to Arthur Mellows Village College in Glinton.  
 
During consideration, the following concerns were noted: 
 

• The journey time for students was now over one hour as a result of the service 
travelling from Eye to Glinton via Queensgate, resulting in a longer school day for 
students 

• That some regulated busses were not being appropriately identified as school 
transport 

• There were questions over whether CRB checks had been carried out for all drivers 

• It was unclear whether the busses being used to transport the students were fitted 
with seatbelts 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
That the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities requests that the Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills and University reconsider the current bus service for students travelling 
from Eye to Glinton so that it travels direct rather than via Queensgate. 
 

5. Safe and Vibrant Rural Centres and Communities  
 
The Commission received a presentation by PC Simon Page from the Cambridgeshire 
Constabulary Rural Communities Action Team (RCAT). The presentation covered the role of 

1



the team across Peterborough and Cambridgeshire. The main points of the presentation 
were: 

• The type of work/crime tackled by the RCAT team, which included: 
o Investigation of diesel and farm vehicle theft 
o Monitoring of hare coursing 

• The geographical area covered by the team, based in Sawtry, included the whole of 
Cambridgeshire and the rural areas to the north of Peterborough 

• The main focus of the team over the upcoming months would be to monitor hare 
coursing which saw a spike in the number of events during the autumn  

 
Members of the Commission thanked PC Page for attending the meeting and raised the 
question of requesting a larger Police presence in the rural villages surrounding 
Peterborough to help reduce the number of speeding incidents and vehicle related crime.  
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities writes to the Chief Constable of 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary requesting that the TFU and Traffic Divisions assist their 
colleagues in RCAT in policing the rural villages surrounding Peterborough, specifically to 
help tackle car and farm crime and the fear of crime during the day and night. 
 

6. Economic Development in Rural Areas 
 
The Commission received a presentation by Mr Edwin Jones, Partnership Director for the 
East of England IDB Ltd (EEIDB). Mr Jones provided details to the Commission on the role 
of the EEIDB and how it had brought investment into the region and developed new and 
existing businesses in rural areas. The presentation also confirmed that: 
 

• One third of businesses in Cambridgeshire are located in the rural area's of the 
county 

• The importance of a rural farming economy as every farm producing a food product 
has 14 jobs in the chain in brining that product to market 

• Every £1.00 spent on locally produced goods, is worth £2.43 to the local economy as 
a whole 

 
The presentation also confirmed that the area surrounding Peterborough contained some of 
the best soils in Europe to enable food growth and that European funding had a large focus 
for food producing farms. The added value being food security for the local area and with 
69% of farms now earning more income from their diversified functions; tourism to farm and 
craft shops have helped develop rural economies further. 
 
Mr Jones highlighted a range of the issues facing rural businesses, which were: 
 

• The lack of reliable, fast broadband services in rural villages and locations 

• Minimal public transport service’s for local children, commuters,  and tourists 
wanting to visit the area 

• The high cost of fuel for domestic and commercial vehicles for those living in rural 
communities 

• Every thriving rural village has a local pub, however the number of rural pubs to 
close over recent years has increased 

 
The following answers were given by Mr Jones in response to questions raised by the 
Commission: 
 

• The local area around Peterborough has very competent farmers and many of the 
expertise used throughout the farming industry started in this area. These skills, along 
with first class soils and a vibrant local market, give the area a high produce yield and 

2



local growers must continue to concentrate on producing the food consumers want to 
eat. 

• The area has excellent grazing land for animals, but usage is not seen as high a 
priority as the development of land for housing, etc. Parish Councils could raise these 
issues with developers if the development of farmland for housing affected local 
wildlife. 

• One method of helping small businesses to expand would be to encourage the 
sharing of commercial farm property with other small business owners. This would 
share costs and produce revenue for farmers on otherwise unused buildings. 

 
The Commission thanked Mr Jones for his presentation and attendance at the meeting. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
That the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities writes to Anglia Ruskin University to 
establish if any courses in rural agriculture would be available to students once Peterborough 
became a university city. 
 

7. Forward Plan  
 
The latest version of the Forward Plan, showing details of the key decisions that the Leader  
of the Council believed the Cabinet or individual Cabinet members would be making over the 
next four months, was received.  
 
The Commission agreed that there were no further items from the Forward Plan to be 
included in the current Rural Scrutiny Work Plan. 
 

8. Work Programme  
 
The Commission considered the work programme for the next meeting and it was agreed 
that the following items would be discussed: 
 

• Planning Policy & Strategy Items  

• Women’s Enterprise Centre–Engagement With Women in Rural Communities;  

• Speed Limits in Rural Areas;  

• Local Transport Plan;  
 

9. Date of the Next Meeting  
 
Tuesday 2 November 2010 at 7pm. 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00  - 8.07 pm 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 4 

2 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Stephen Emeny, Governance Officer 
Contact Details – email: stephen.emeny@peterborough.gov.uk, tel: 01733 452347  
 

RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATION MADE BY THE COMMISSION 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Commission of the response to recommendations 

made at previous meetings. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission consider the response to the recommendation made and agree if, and 
how, the implementation of the recommendation will be monitored. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 During the Commission’s meeting on 7 September 2010, a recommendation was 
made following consideration of concerns raised by local parents to Commission Members 
regarding the school transport for students travelling from Eye to Arthur Mellows Village 
College. 
 

3.2 The recommendation was subsequently submitted to the Cabinet Member for Education, Skills 
and University, and the team Manager for Passenger Transport Contracts and Planning for 
response. 
 

3.3 A copy of the recommendation made and the response is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 The Committee is asked to consider the response and agree if, and how, the implementation 
of the recommendation will be monitored. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Any implications are contained within the individual response to the recommendation. 
 

6. NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The Scrutiny Commission are asked to consider the response given and make appropriate 
recommendations 
 

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

7.1 Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities held on 7 September 
2010. 
 

8. APPENDICES 
 

8.1 1. Recommendation List. 
  5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Appendix 1 
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities 
7 September 2010  
 
Recommendation to the Cabinet Member for Education, Skills & University and the Team Manager for Passenger Transport Contracts and 
Planning 
 

Item Recommendation 
 

Response  

Passenger Transport 
Framework Tender – 
School Bus Service, Eye 
to Arthur Mellows Village 
College 

It is recommended to the Cabinet Member for Education, 
Skills and University that as a requirement of the Passenger 
Transport Framework Tender:  

i. Reconsider the decision whereby the school transport 
service travels from Eye, via Peterborough 
Queensgate centre, to Arthur Mellows Village College 
to a service that will travel direct. 

Central Government will publish its spending review on 
20th October 2010.  Whatever the outcome, the impact on 
Peterborough City Council is likely to be significant.  
Cabinet members have chosen to be pro-active in their 
approach and take opportunities to deliver our statutory 
requirements in a different manner, for a reduced cost.  
One such example is the transport of students from Eye to 
Arthur Mellows Village College.  In August 2010, 
Stagecoach offered the Council an opportunity to transport 
a number of students by public transport, using their 
Megarider ticket, which the Council purchases at a 
reduced cost.  From September 2010, by transferring 
these students to public transport, the Council is meeting 
all its statutory requirements, together with complying with 
the children’s Transport Policy.   
 

Whilst I can appreciate the Security Commission for Rural 
Communities, and many parents’ desire for a direct 
service from Eye to the College, that option was not open 
to us as part of our discussions with Stagecoach.  Whilst I 
have given consideration to your request, there will be no 
changes to the provision of transport for year 11 students 
at this time.  However, I will ask the Council’s Passenger 
Transport team to monitor the bus service changes in the 
Eye area and should the opportunity arise, to offer a more 
direct service, either with Stagecoach or another public 
transport provider.  This will be given full consideration.  I 
can further add that the College is monitoring the situation 
on behalf of the Education Department and at a recent 
Governors’ meeting, the head teacher reported that there 
had been no significant problems with this service so far. 

 

7



8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

2 November 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Operations 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Anne Senior, Economic Participation Programme Manager 
Contact Details -  (01733) 864106 or email anne.senior@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

PETERBOROUGH WOMEN’S ENTERPRISE CENTRE 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the briefing on the Peterborough Women’s 

Enterprise Centre (PWEC) which was presented to the Committee on the 13 July 2010. The 
briefing included the aims and objectives of the PWEC in response to a request from the 
Scrutiny Commission on the work undertaken or planned to be undertaken to engage with 
women in rural areas.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To consider the information and statistics presented at this meeting and make any appropriate 
recommendations for future development and future actions. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The Economic Participation Programme and in particular the activities of the project link directly 
the achievements of the Local Area Agreement and National Indicators as listed below: 
 
LAA priority  Regenerating Neighbourhoods 
LAA outcome  National Indicator   
                            NI153 – working age people claiming out of work benefits in the  worst 

 performing neighbourhoods 
 
LAA priority Increasing Economic Prosperity  
LAA Outcome National Indicator  NI151 – Overall employment rate 
    NI166 – Average earnings of employees in the area 
    NI171 – VAT registration rate 

 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Background to the establishment of the WEC 
 
Programme staff attended the Scrutiny Committee meeting on the 13 July 2010 and went 
through the reasons for the establishment of the centre and the objectives of the project in the 
financial year 2010-11. The project advised the reasoning for a reduced concentration of 
activities in rural areas compared to activity taking place in central areas.  
 
 
The Programme Manager advised that the main objective of the project is to assist women in 
deprived areas to start and maintain their own business. Rural areas do not fall into the main 
areas of deprivation that the Centre targeted, however, the project acknowledged that whilst 
rural areas did fall into the targeted areas they would like to assist women in these wards. The 
project requested advice from the Councillors on what methods should be used. 
 

9



4.3 
 
 
 
 

Member’s suggested ways in which women in rural areas could be reached. The programme 
team agreed to put the suggested ideas into an action plan and monitor results.  Members 
acknowledged that the Centre did have limited resources and if an action was not gaining the 
expected outcomes further investment into these areas would be reduced. 
 
 

5. NEXT STEPS 
 

5.1 The Scrutiny Commission are asked to consider the information on the Peterborough Women’s 
Enterprise Centre and to make any appropriate recommendations for future development. 
 

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

6.1 None 
 

  

10



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

2 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Operations 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Peter Tebb 
Contact Details - 01733 453519 or peter.tebb@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

Update on Speed Limits in Rural Areas 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To inform the commission on progress achieved regarding the: 

• Government’s current position in relation to the publication of the National Road Safety 
Strategy and the potential lowering the speed limit on rural roads to 50 mph; 

• Proposed implementation of 20 mph speed limits around rural schools.  
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 It is recommended that the commission reconsider their original recommendation to proceed 
with the implementation of 20mph speed limits outside rural schools, based on the existing low 
speeds recorded outside the schools and the low level of accidents. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The report falls within the priority of creating strong and supportive communities as defined by 
the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
The report links to the achievement of National Indicators 47 and 48. 
 
NI47 : The reduction of people killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 
NI48 : The reduction of children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 A previous report was presented to the commission in October 2009. 
 

5. NATIONAL ROAD SAFETY STRATEGY 
 

5.1 At the time of the previous report the previous Government was consulting on the proposed 
National Road Safety Strategy to 2020. 
 
The publication of the strategy was subsequently deferred pending the North Review of Drink 
and Drug Driving (subsequently published 16 June 2010). 
 
In the intervening period there was a change of national government which is now fully 
investigating the economic and public service resource impact of any suggested changes to the 
law, taking account of the current financial and economic situation. 
 
Consequently the National Road Safety Strategy has not been published and thus no further 
progress has been made. 
 
 

11



6. 20MPH SPEED LIMITS OUTSIDE RURAL SCHOOLS 
 

6.1 
 

Informal Consultation has been undertaken with the head teachers of the rural schools, the 
parish councils that represent these areas and the appropriate Ward Councillors with regards to 
the proposed introduction of the 20mph speed limits.  All schools and parish council are 
supportive of the proposals and no objections were received. 
 

6.2 
 

Speed surveys have been undertaken outside all schools within the area for which the 20mph 
limit is proposed.  These were conducted during the times when pupils arrive for the start of the 
school day and again during the middle of the school day.  Similar speed surveys would be 
undertaken following the introduction of the 20mph speed limits to determine any speed 
reduction achieved. 

  

 Peak Hour Average 
Speed mph  

(nr of vehicles) 

Off Peak Average 
Speed mph 

(nr of vehicles) 
Barnack 15 (50) 19 (13) 
Castor 24 (100) 23 (100) 
Eye 24 (100) 25 (100) 
Glinton 25 (100) 27 (100) 
Helpston 28 (100) 30 (100) 
Newborough 19 (89) 30 (50) 
Northborough 21 (68) 24 (40) 
Thorney 20 (81) 21 (40) 
Wittering 27 (100) 26 (100) 

 
The surveys demonstrate that speeds are already low at the time when pupils are arriving for 
school.  In many locations speeds are compliant with those that would be expected within a 
20mph speed limit. 
 

6.3 In terms of accidents outside the school there have been none in the last 5 years outside the 
schools in Newborough, Castor, Wittering, Helpston, Barnack, Northborough or Thorney. 
 
Outside the remaining schools there have only been the following accidents all of which 
resulted in slight injuries. 
 
Eye – 12/03/2007 at 08.20hrs a 10yrd old child ran out from a bus and was hit by a car. 
Eye – 21/11/2005 at 13.15hrs, 2 cars were involved in a shunt turning right into a side road 
 
Glinton AMVC  – 15/09/2009 at 08.40hrs two cars were involved in rear end shunt 
Glinton Primary – 31/01/2006 at 23.40hrs a single vehicle lost control and struck a post 
 
Of these accidents, three have occurred during the school day but only one has involved a 
child. 
 
Since the time of the original report there have been no people killed or seriously injured 
outside rural schools. 
 

6.4 
 

The cost of implementing the 20mph speed limit at the above locations is estimated at £16,000. 
 
This funding has been identified from the Integrated Transport element of the Local Transport 
Plan allocation. 
 

6.5 Given the existing low speeds and small number of accidents outside the schools it is 
considered that the expenditure of £16,000 to implement 20 mph speed limits can not be 
justified.  The Commission is therefore requested to reconsider its decision. 
 
 

12



6.6 The formal traffic regulation orders and the letters of formal consultation have been prepared.  
Should the commission wish to continue with the implementation of speed limits the letter would 
be delivered. 
 
The consultation must then run for a statutory minimum period of 21 days.  Should no 
objections be received the orders will be made and the speed limits implemented thereafter. 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 Should the Commission wish to proceed the speed limits would be implemented as proposed.  
A further report for information would be submitted to the commission on completion of the 
follow up speed surveys. 
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

8.1 None 
 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1 None 
 
 

  

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

2 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Chief Executive 
 
Contact Officer(s) – Richard Kay, Gemma Wildman, Matthew Hogan, Jim Daley (see initials 
against each item below) 
Contact Details – 01733 863795, 863824, 864055, 453522 (respectively) 
 

Rural Planning and Housing Updates 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 A report setting out an update on a number of rural planning and housing issues, together with 

a request for comments on items where they will subsequently be considered by Cabinet. 
 
This report reviews the following matters: 
 

1. Village Design Supplementary Planning Document – draft for consultation (RK / JD) 

2. Rural Housing Delivery Partnership (MH) 

3. The use of the Community Land Trust (MH) 

4. Peterborough Site Allocations DPD Document (RK/GW)  

5. Emerging national initiatives, such as Local Housing Trusts (MH)  

6. Rural Exception Sites (MH) 

7. Rural Housing Strategy 2010-2013 – 6 month progress report (MH)  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Scrutiny is requested to note the various updates as presented in the report, plus offer any 
comments on emerging progress or proposals to date. As applicable, such comments shall be 
reported to Cabinet / Council in due course. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The items reported in this paper are directly relevant to meeting the four Priorities of the SCS, 
especially ‘Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth’ and ‘Creating opportunities – 
tackling inequalities’.  
 

4. BACKGROUND & KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 Village Design Supplementary Planning Document – draft for consultation: The SPD will 
set out detailed ‘development management’ design related planning policies for selected rural 
villages, which will be used day-to-day by planning officers when considering the detailed 
aspects of applicable planning permissions. It does not set major strategic targets (that is a 
task for the Core Strategy) and it does not include maps or new land allocations for 
development in villages (that is a task for the Site Allocations DPD). 
 

 The Village Design SPD is seen, rightly so, as a very important planning policy tool to control 
and ensure high quality development in villages. Whilst clearly ‘city’ residents will generally 
have very little interest in it, there will be (and already is) very high interest from parishes and 

15



  2 

village communities. 
 

 The policies, once adopted, will become extremely important when determining planning 
applications. They give the Council the powers and justification to either refuse or approve 
something, especially on detailed design matters (which can be very sensitive in local village 
communities). There is no statutory obligation to prepare this document, but there is a very 
high demand for it. Getting it right will be very important. 
 

 This document is in its first, of two, stages of gestation. Consultation has already taken place 
with parish councils, and this has assisted in getting to the draft we currently have. If approved 
by cabinet, it will be made available for formal public comments in January and then redrafted 
as a final version for adoption by Cabinet. 
 

 The document is still in its preparatory stages, and we attach a very early draft of the 
document. We will talk you through its key features and policies at the meeting. It will be 
Scrutiny’s opportunity to consider, in principle, whether it likes the purpose and structure of the 
SPD, and whether the emerging policies are heading in the right direction. Any support or 
concern will be considered and, as applicable, reported to Cabinet. 
 

 Estimated timetable: 
 

• The SPD is being presented to Planning & Environmental Protection Committee 
in early December 

• Cabinet – 13 December 

• Public consultation – opportunity for formal comments on the appropriateness of 
the document – Early 2011 

• Final version of SPD considered by Cabinet – March 2011 

• Adopted as formal planning policy 
 

 Rural Housing Delivery Partnership: The Peterborough Rural Housing Delivery Partnership 
was established in April 2010 in order to increase the supply of affordable housing available 
for households residing in the 26 parishes that surround the city. Membership of the 
partnership presently includes two housing associations (Accent Nene and BPHA), one rural 
enabler (Cambridgeshire ACRE) and Peterborough City Council. The work of the partnership 
focuses upon the development of small affordable housing schemes in parishes where a need 
for such housing is proven. This approach relies upon close collaboration with parish councils 
to identify housing need and sites with potential for development. 
 

 Following analysis of data from the Peterborough Housing Register, six priority parishes have 
been identified. Representatives of the Housing Strategy team and Cambridgeshire ACRE 
have approached three parishes to obtain consent to proceed with a parish-wide housing 
needs surveys. Thus far, one parish (Thorney) has agreed for a survey to be conducted in 
order to ascertain the extent of local housing need. A series of surveys are presently being 
prepared, which will be sent to each household within the parish in the coming weeks. A 
further parish has declined, and discussions are ongoing with the third. The remaining three 
parish councils will be approached imminently. 
 

 The use of the Community Land Trust: Since the adoption of the RHS 2010-13 (see below 
item for a general discussion on the RHS), both the Housing Strategy and Neighbourhoods 
teams have worked to develop contacts with Foundation East to discuss ways to promote 
Community Land Trust (CLT) development in Peterborough. Foundation East is a social bank 
that develops and finances CLTs and other community-led organisations. Initial discussions 
have focused upon the potential use of Community Area Action Plans (CAAP) as a means of 
identifying local assets which could be secured by a CLT for local benefit.  
 

 These assets could currently be in private or public hands (examples include housing, 
community centres, business premises, public houses, car parks and open spaces) and would 

16



  3 

involve a negotiated sale to the CLT. Occasionally, assets currently in public sector hands 
may, if the public sector owner so wishes, be transferred for free (or nominal sale) to a CLT if 
the asset has no real value or is, in effect, a liability to the public sector owner. This could be, 
for example, a grass verge or similar which requires on-going maintenance yet has no hope 
value of future development prospects. To be clear, therefore, there is no expectation that 
assets in public sector control would be sold to a CLT for below its market value. 
 

 Since our initial discussions, Foundation East have recruited Phil Rose, a CLT Development 
Manager who will work directly with community groups to establish trusts and take on the 
ownership of local assets. The Housing Strategy team and Julie Rivett (Neighbourhood 
Manager) are due to meet with Phil in early November to discuss how we can bring him into 
the CAAP process. 
 

 Peterborough Site Allocations DPD Document: The Site Allocation DPD feeds off the 
Peterborough Core Strategy which in turn was based on the Sustainable Communities 
Strategy (eg the latter two both share the same vision statement). The Site Allocation DPD 
translates the vision of these two ‘upper tier’ strategies by allocating, on a map, new sites for 
development. 
 

 The Site Allocations DPD is probably the second most important statutory planning document 
for Peterborough, after the Core Strategy. For Members and the public, it is probably the most 
sensitive planning document, for the reason that, unlike the Core Strategy, it allocates, on a 
map, specific sites for new development (and hence Members / public can see precisely what 
is proposed in their community). 
 

 In short, the Core Strategy sets the headlines and ‘broad’ areas for growth; the Site Allocations 
DPD translates the Core Strategy into actual proposed development sites. 
 

 We are reaching the final stages of preparing the Site Allocations DPD. Numerous 
consultations have taken place over the past 2-3 years, all of which have influenced what is to 
be included in what is known as the “Pre-Submission” version of the plan. If approved by the 
Council, it will be made available for formal public comments and then “Submitted” to the 
Secretary of State, together with any comments received from the public (i.e. the public 
comments submitted at this stage are NOT considered by the Council, but rather an Inspector 
appointed by the Secretary of State. Under the current regulations, the Inspector has the final 
say on whether to accept or reject objections, though the coalition government has indicated 
this may change in the future. For now, we must operate under the current regulations). 
 

 The main features of the recommended Site Allocations DPD (pre-submission version) will be 
discussed at the meeting, using a large scale map that shall be brought along. This will 
highlight locations for new dwellings, locations for new employment, confirmation of a 
Regional Freight Interchange at Stanground (Magna Park), and other ‘map based’ policies 
on issues such as green wedges and delineation of local shopping centres. 
 

 Unlike an earlier draft, it no longer includes any Gypsy and Traveller sites other than the 
proposed transit site at Norwood. 
 

 Estimated timetable: 
 

• The Site Allocations DPD is being presented to Planning & Environmental 
Protection Committee on 26 October 

• Cabinet – 8 November 

• Council – 8 December 

• Public consultation – opportunity for formal comments on the ‘soundness’ of the 
document – January/February 2011 

• Submission to the Secretary of State – Spring 2011 

• Public Examination (including a hearing) – Summer/Autumn 2011 

17



  4 

• Inspector’s binding report and adoption by Council – very late 2011 or early 2012 
 

 A large scale map showing the proposed sites for development, together with the emerging 
text of the plan, will be brought to the meeting to facilitate the discussion. However, Scrutiny 
Members have access to these papers via the papers published on the website for the 26 
October 2010 PEP committee – see:  
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=2378&Ver=4 

 
 For the rural areas, and taking the lead from the Core Strategy, only limited new growth is 

planned (less than 5% of the total district wide growth) though obviously even relatively small 
development sites can have a big impact in rural villages. 
  

 Proposed development sites in the rural areas are focussed on Eye and Thorney in the first 
instance, but there are also some sites proposed in the ‘limited growth villages’ of Helpston, 
Glinton, Newborough, Ailsworth, Castor and Wittering. 
 

 Emerging national initiatives, such as Local Housing Trusts: Details are still emerging 
from central government regarding their proposals for Local Housing Trusts and, more 
generally, the planning system. In short, we await the ‘Localism Bill’ in November 2010 before 
we will be aware of details of any new national initiatives. The Strategic Planning and Enabling 
team will explore these initiatives as and when firm details materialize. In terms of the 
government’s promotion of ‘localism’, the work of the Housing Strategy team to support CLT 
development is pertinent to this agenda. The emerging Peterborough Housing Strategy is 
likely to add its support to community-led housing as a means of addressing housing need.  
 

 Rural Exception Sites: A rural exception site is most simply defined as a site that is located 
adjacent to a village boundary where, as a result of the existence of an evidenced housing 
need, development of solely affordable housing may be granted planning permission. Any 
development permitted on a site of this nature would be an ‘exception’ to local and national 
planning policy that constrains development in the open countryside, hence the term 
‘exception site’. 
 

 There are two major benefits of exception site development. Firstly, consent for exception site 
development is only granted where a proven local need for affordable housing exists. 
Secondly, any affordable housing developed via the exception site route must remain as 
affordable housing to meet local need in perpetuity. 
 

 The Peterborough Local Plan only permits exception site development in the larger villages 
across Peterborough. However, the emerging Peterborough Core Strategy permits exception 
site development across all rural settlements across the authority. The Peterborough Rural 
Housing Delivery Partnership is presently working with parish councils to conduct housing 
needs surveys and identify exception sites where there may be the potential to develop 
affordable housing. 
 

 Rural Housing Strategy 2010-2013 – 4 month progress report: The table below sets out 
the key progress made towards actions within the adopted Rural Housing Strategy 2010-13 
Action Plan. As can be seen, significant progress has been made on a number of fronts since 
the adoption of the RHS in June 2010.  

  

Key Action Progress 

To establish a Rural Housing Delivery 
Partnership 

Rural Housing Partnership established April 
2010. The partnership consists of PCC, 
Cambridgeshire ACRE, Accent Nene and 
BPHA.  

To develop links between Cambridgeshire 
Acre and rural communities with a view to 

Three parish councils have been 
approached. One has shown great interest, 

18



  5 

explore exception site development 
opportunities 

and it has been agreed that Cambridgeshire 
ACRE can proceed with a housing needs 
survey. One parish council has turned down 
the opportunity to work with Cambridgeshire 
ACRE, and we are awaiting a final decision 
from the third. The three remaining ‘priority 
parishes’ will be approached in due course.   

To develop links between rural communities 
and a Community Land Trust (CLT) enabler 
in order to explore the methods and merits of 
forming CLTs for the purposes of developing 
affordable rural housing.   

Early discussions have taken place between 
PCC and Foundation East, which is a social 
bank that supports CLT development. Our 
next step is to explore how their newly 
appointed CLT Development Manager can 
assist communities in securing assets 
identified through the Community Area 
Action Plans produced by our 
Neighbourhoods teams. Due to meet with 
the CLT Development Manager in early 
November.  

Build relationships between PCC and ‘rural 
50’ and ‘rural 80’ authorities in order to 
gather best practice with regards to delivery 
of affordable rural housing.  

Contacts established with Northumberland 
County Council and the Development Trust 
Association to gather advice on how to 
promote CLT development in Peterborough. 
Contact established with Foundation East as 
a result of these discussions. Various other 
contacts developed as a result of attendance 
at the Community Trust 2010 conference in 
August.  

Produce a toolkit/how that sets out how 
energy efficiency and fuel poverty 
programmes can be replicated across 
Peterborough.  

Due to changes in personnel, the GPP 
Environment Capital Officer will no longer be 
leading on this. We are awaiting the outcome 
of the proposed City Council 
Neighbourhoods staff restructure before this 
work is delegated elsewhere.  

Seek and pursue opportunities to facilitate 
village wide energy audits as a basis for 
further work on fuel poverty and energy 
efficiency. 

Due to changes in personnel, the GPP 
Environment Capital Officer will no longer be 
leading on this. We are awaiting the outcome 
of the proposed City Council 
Neighbourhoods staff restructure before this 
work is delegated elsewhere. 

To roll out the Community Energy Challenge 
into rural areas of Peterborough 

£3k of funding has been secured by the 
Housing Strategy team to fund the purchase 
of 60 energy meters that will be used for the 
Community Energy Challenge. The 
challenge itself has been led by the Climate 
Change team, who are presently attempting 
to secure the assistance of parish and ward 
councillors in promoting the first inter-parish 
community challenge. Further promotion of 
the scheme amongst members and parishes 
will be required if uptake is slow.   

Further promote the ‘Your Footprint Counts’ 
campaign in rural areas 

The Climate Change team will be promoting 
energy efficiency in rural areas this autumn 
and winter, including the use of a thermal 
camera to identify and highlight energy 
inefficiency hotspots.  

To investigate whether resources can be 
made available to convert existing Village 

Work is underway for the production of a 
Village Design SPD, which will, in simple 

19



  6 

Design Statements into Supplementary 
Planning Documents. 

terms, reinstate the status of VDS 
documents produced under the previous 
Local Plan system. See agenda report for 
more details.  

To inform rural communities about the 
services offered by Planning Aid, and enable 
them to better engage with the planning 
system. 

Contacts developed with Planning Aid, who 
are keen to work with rural communities to 
assist them in developing VDS documents 
and help them to better engage in the 
planning system. The intention has been to 
use the GPP’s Rural Working Group as a 
forum to promote this work, but the group 
has temporarily disbanded due to changes in 
personnel within the GPP. We plan to 
recommence this work once the group starts 
to meet again. Failing this, we will approach 
the Neighbourhood teams as a means of 
achieving this key action.   

  
5. IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 The items reported in this paper have wide and far reaching implications for all communities 

and all wards of the council. 
 
Housing and planning for development go to the very heart of community needs, and the 
proposals described in this paper involve sensitive and emotive issues. 
 
The items also have financial implications – choices made as part of these items can affect 
land values considerably, as well have consequential knock on financial implications for the 
council in terms of how it spends resources (eg on services to support growth and the new 
communities created). However, most of the financial implications are indirect, rather than a 
direct spend on the items referred (or are a consequence of the policy decisions made as part 
of the items in this paper). 
 
There are considerable legal implications, both in terms of undertaking due consultation and 
preparing the documents in accordance with the regulations.  
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 Wide and far reaching, in some case over many years. 
 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 As described in section 4 
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

8.1 There a wide range of background evidence documents which underpin the items described in 
this agenda report. However, two key ones are: 

• Site Allocations DPD (Preferred Options version) – March 2010 

• Rural Housing Strategy (Adopted) – June 2010 
 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1 Draft, emerging Village Design SPD 
 

20



  7 

Appendix 1 – Emerging, Draft Village Design SPD 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

[Insert appropriate village development photo] 
 

 

Design and Development in 
Selected Villages 

 
Supplementary Planning Document 

 
Consultation Draft – [month] 2010 

 

21



  8 

Foreword 
 
Welcome to this important document which will help inform, improve and shape development in 
villages. 
 
This is the consultation draft of the Development in Selected Villages Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD), following Cabinet approval on [date].   
 
How to Respond 
 
Full consultation details are contained on Page 1. 
 
Closing Date: This consultation commences on [date] and the closing date for comments is [date]. 
Please make sure you have emailed, posted or dropped off your comments by that date. 
 
 
Who Prepared this Document? 
 
This document has been prepared by Peterborough City Council (the local planning authority). 
Throughout this document, when the words ‘we’ or ‘us’ are used, we are referring to the City 
Council.  
 
If you would like to contact us, please do so as follows:   

• You can email us at planningpolicy@peterborough.gov.uk – please ensure you make it 
clear you are referring to the Village Design SPD.  

• You can also write to us at: Planning Policy, Peterborough City Council, Stuart House, East 
Wing, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD 

• You can call planning policy us on: 01733 863872  

 
OS Maps – Copyright Note 
 
The Maps within this document are produced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission 
of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office Crown copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings. 
 
 

22



  9 

 
 
Contents 
 PAGE 

1 DOCUMENT BACKGROUND 10 

2 VILLAGES FORMING PART OF THIS SPD  

3 WIDER POLICY FIT  

4 GENERAL VILLAGE POLICIES 

5 VILLAGES  - BARNACK & PILSGATE (FOR ILLUSTRATION)   5 

6 VILLAGE  - GLINTON (FOR ILLUSTRATION)   6 

7 ETC  

8 CONTACTS & FURTHER INFORMATION 14 

 

 
APPENDICES 
1  
 
 
 

23



  10 

1. Document Background 

1.1 Introduction 

[to be written]. 

1.2 Document status and procedure 

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) can cover a range of issues, both thematic and site 
specific, which may expand policy or provide further detail to an existing Development Plan Document. 
SPDs may take the form of design guides, area development briefs, master plans or issue-based 
documents. Once adopted by the Council, they are of significant weight when the Council is determining 
future planning applications. 

1.3 Consultation  

Government regulations stipulate that there must be a minimum 4 week consultation period to take place 
following which the local planning authority should consider representations, prepare a statement setting 
out a summary of the main issues raised and how these issues are to be addressed in the document to 
be considered for adoption.  The consultation will be undertaken in accordance with peterborough city 
council’s statement of community involvement.      

This document forms the Consultation Draft of the SPD. Consultation opens on [date] and closes at 5pm 
on [date].  The document is available to view via the Council’s website www.peterborough.gov.uk or at 
the following venues in a printed format. 

• Council Offices, Bayard Place 

• Peterborough Central Library, Broadway 

• [other venues to be added] 

There is a response form which can be filled in and returned to the Council.  

You can email us at planningpolicy@peterborough.gov.uk – please ensure you make it clear you are 
referring to the Development in Selected Villages SPD.  

You can also write to us at: Planning Policy, Peterborough City Council, Stuart House, East Wing, St 
Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD 

1.4 SPD objectives 

The primary objective of the SPD is to supplement …[add policy(s) to be supplemented]. 

1.5 Monitoring and review 

This SPD will be monitored, reviewed and updated to ensure that it remains relevant and in accordance 
with Development Plan policy. It forms part of the Local Development Framework, and will be monitored 
via the Annual Monitoring Report which the Council prepares each year covering a wide range of 
planning matters. 

2  VILLAGES FORMING THIS SPD 

2.1 Introduction [commentary on why we are picking the villages we have].  

3 WIDER POLICY FIT 

3.1 National Context  [to be written]. 

3.2 Local Context [to be written]. 

24



  11 

4 General Village Policies  

The following polices are derived from the Village Design Statements and Conservation Area Appraisals 
for Ailsworth, Barnack, Bainton, Castor, Glinton, Helpston, Pilsgate, Thorney, Ufford and Wansford. 
 
4.1 Building Materials - The Stone Villages 
 
The stone villages are defined as Ailsworth, Barnack, Bainton, Castor, Glinton, Helpston, Pilsgate, Ufford 
and Wansford. 
 

Building materials that affect the character and appearance of limestone Conservation 
Areas. 
BM1 Planning permission for new development that may affect the character and appearance of the 
conservation area and its setting within the stone villages will only be granted if the proposed building 
materials and manner in which they are used is sympathetic to local traditional building materials and 
can be judged to enhance the general character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
The traditional materials or modern materials considered to be sympathetic to traditional materials are: 

(a) Local limestone, laid in courses of between 30mm to150mm with quoins at corners and reveals 

and stone or wood lintels over openings 

(b) Replica Collyweston slate laid in diminishing courses 

(c) Clay pantiles, preferably triple roll but also single roll and preferably in buff/ yellow colouring but 

also orange in some locations on single storey buildings only. 

(d) Thatch on buildings reminiscent of cottage proportions, and of one, one and a half and two 

storeys in height only. 

(e) Welsh slates only in specific areas where Welsh slates are the predominant material, for example 

close, to 19th century railway buildings.  

 

Building Materials for development outside limestone Conservation Areas but for development 
that affects the character and appearance of the historic village in its landscape setting.  

BM2 Planning permission for new development that may affect the general character and 
appearance of historic stone villages and their settings in the landscape will only be granted if 
the proposed building materials and the manner in which they are used is sympathetic to the 
local building tradition and can be judged to form satisfactory visual relationships with the 
settlement, its traditional architecture and landscape setting.  

 
The traditional materials, or modern materials considered to be sympathetic to traditional materials are: 

(a) Local limestone laid in 30mm – 150mm courses with appropriate detailing 

(b) Artificial stone, manufactured to replicate local limestone and that can be laid in strict courses of 

30mm – 150mm with appropriate detailing. 

(c) Buff or red/brown stock bricks of similar colour and patina to local stock bricks but applicable to 

no more than 1 in 10 of new buildings. 

(d) Replica Collyweston slates, laid in diminishing courses 

(e) Small plain tiles in buff colour 

(f) Yellow/buff or red pantiles only single storey buildings only. 

(g) Thatch 

 
 
4.2 Building Materials - General 
 

Building Materials on areas of predominantly 20th century development within Villages  
BM3 Where development is proposed in areas within villages that are clearly 20th century in character 
and materials and have no visual relationship with the historic village or surrounding landscape, the 
building materials selected would normally be expected to match those within that area. 
 

25



  12 

 
4.3 Stone Walls, Brick Walls and Railings 

 
Retention of Existing Historic Walls 

WA1 Planning or conservation area consent will not normally be granted for development that may 
result in a loss or part loss, for example to install vehicular or pedestrian access, of any traditional stone 
or brick wall or railings that are judged to be a historic boundary feature or add to the character and 
appearance of a village. 
 
WA2 Planning or conservation area consent will not normally be granted for the erection of fences or 
other structures that replace or supplement existing walls in either sound condition or in need of repair. 
 
WA3 Where the site of a proposed development includes traditional stone or brick boundary walls, it 
will normally be expected that the walls will be repaired and/or reinstated using traditional methods and 
materials as part of the development proposals. 
 
New Walls in New Developments 
WA4 Proposals for new developments in villages will be expected to include stone or brick walls 
constructed with traditional methods and materials, on boundaries that are open to public view. 
 
 
4.4 Hedges, Grass Verges and Other Frontage Features 
 
Retention of Existing Hedges and Grass Verges 

HG1 Planning permission will not normally be granted for development that may result in the loss, or 
sub-division of hedges, grass verges or other frontage features such as a bank or ditch, for example to 
install vehicular accesses, where this will have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the 
street scene. 
 

 

26



  13 

5. Villages  - Barnack and Pilsgate 
 
5.1 Introduction 
The strata of limestone has been quarried since at least Roman times and the form of the current village 
of Barnack can be traced back to the pre-Conquest period evidenced by the Saxon tower to St John’s 
church. 
 
The Medieval period marked a massive expansion in quarrying and Barnack was a place of some 
importance, reflected in surviving buildings such as Kingsley House, The Alms Houses (formerly Feoffee 
cottages) and 7 Station Road. 
 
The purchase of the village as part of the Burghley estate in the latter part of the 16th century and the 
later formation of the Walcott estate considerably influenced the form of the village, with buildings 
continuing the stone and Collyweston slate tradition.  These estates also influenced the character of the 
surrounding landscape.   The enclosures of the open fields and heaths from 1809 resulted a patchwork 
of smaller fields, and the boundaries to many of these were marked by stone walls rather than the more 
normal quickthorn hedges. 
 
The first half of the 20th century saw the abandoning of the stone tradition with the Uffington Road 
housing.  The second half of the 20th century saw Bishops Walk, the first “estate” development, the end 
of working village farms and the closure of the railway.  Since the 1970’s, there have been no further 
housing estates but new development has continued by extending ribbon development along frontages 
and continual infilling.  Since the 1980’s, there has been more conscious efforts to make new 
development more sympathetic to the longstanding stone tradition. 
 
It is likely that the infilling will continue and further opportunities for development sought in remaining 
open areas.  It is therefore important that the experience gained in implementing the Village Design 
Statement is used to ensure new development reinforces and enhances the special character of Barnack 
and Pilsgate. 
 
5.2 Recent Studies and Policy Documents 
 

Barnack and Pilsgate Village Design Statement 2001: This document, prepared by local people 
through the Village Design Statement Committee, examines the village setting, its historic forms of 
development and associated architectural detailing, and the nature of new development from the second 
half of the 20th century.  It then considers potential impacts of new development and provides guidelines 
to help future buildings integrate into the historic village environment. 
 
Barnack and Pilsgate Parish Plan 2005: The village plan was preceded by a village SWOT analysis 
which canvassed the opinions of local people.  The Plan considers the village’s historic built and natural 
environment, communications and traffic, the rural economy and leisure, amenity and educational issues 
and opportunities.  It then considers future development and identifies three sites, the Airey House Site, 
The Rectory Garden and Limes Farmyard and the possibilities of public transport and quiet recreational 
routes for hikers, horse riders and cyclists. 
 
Barnack Conservation Area and Village Appraisal 2007: This presents a detailed analysis of the 
historical factors that have combined to produce the present appearance and character of the today’s 
village and it’s setting.  The Appraisal makes specific recommendations to help conserve and enhance 
the historic fabric, character and appearance of the village.  These include increasing the size of the 
conservation area to include the historic landscape immediately around the settlement. 
 
5.3 Specific Barnack and Pilsgate Policy 
 
Having reviewed the recent studies and policies documents for Barnack and Pilsgate, the following 
policy captures those elements where the planning system can make a positive contribution to meeting 
the aims and goals of those documents. As such, all planning applications for development in Barnack 
and Pilsgate will be tested against General Village Policies BM1, BM2, BM3, WA1, WA2, WA3, WA4, 
and HG1, the following policy, as well as wider Peterborough-wide planning policies, in order to 
determine whether such development proposals should be granted permission. 

27



  14 

 

Policy Village Design SPD 1 – Barnack and Pilsgate 

Development proposals in Barnack and Pilsgate will be determined against the following criteria: 
 
VDS1 Individual or small groups of houses (are suitable) for the village environment.  Larger housing 

estates   are …inappropriate. 
 
VDS2 Damage to significant archaeological of historic remains should be avoided but where this is not 

feasible, adequate provision must be made for appropriate recording. 
 
VDS3 Careful attention should be paid to the layout of new developments to reflect the character of the 

village. 
 
VDS4 It is important that spacing and density of new (development)…does not appear out of place in 

relation to be appropriate to historic form existing development nearby. 
 
VDS5 New (development) should not overlook or dominate existing dwellings (or infringe) 

their…amenity or abut older properties, thus diminishing the visual impact of…ancient properties. 
 
VDS6 …roof slopes, gable ends and house frontages should…match or blend with surrounding 

properties. 
 
VDS7 Existing buildings must always be retained and converted where possible 
 
VDS8 Building materials should blend with surrounding properties; masonry paint should not  be used 

in the conservation area and…(materials for conversions or extensions to  existing 
buildings should match the original). 

 

VDS9 Windows and doors should match the scale and designs of (traditional) windows in the  area 
and be in timber construction…;rooflights should not be installed…on road frontage roof 
slopes…and where they are (used, should be of a size, shape and design to minimise visual 
impact). 

 
VDS10 (Appropriate roof materials are considered to be natural Collyweston slate, or replica Collyweston 

slate, blue Welsh slates, or pantiles)…to match existing or surrounding roof styles.  Flat 
roofs…are inappropriate… 

 
VDS11 Chimneys should be retained and repaired in their original form (and should not be) shortened or 

removed.  …New houses should include chimneys…(to designs to match those on traditional 
properties nearby). 

 
VDS12 Stone walls are an inherent part of the village.  Boundary (treatments for new development) 

should be carefully considered and should be designed to match those of surrounding properties.  
Old stone walls should be (not be demolished but) preserved and repaired.  Old railings should 
also be preserved.  Modern style panel or close boarded wooden fencing is not appropriate on 
road frontages. 

 
VDS13 …The design and operational intensity of (proposed businesses and commercial 

properties)…should be suitable for a village setting and the design of (commercial premises) 
(including vehicular access and parking) should…complement and reflect the area.  Signage 
should be carefully considered, be uncluttered and suitable for the (village) environment. 

 
VDS14 The village envelope…and open frontages within the settlement (and specified or marked in the 

Peterborough Local Plan) should be respected. 

 

 

28



  15 

5.4 Evidence Base  
The documents Barnack and Pilsgate Village Design Statement 2001; Barnack and Pilsgate Parish Plan 
2005; Barnack Conservation Area and Village Appraisal 2007 have been used as the evidence base to 
form Policy SPD1.  The full documents can be viewed by clicking on the web links. The SPD will be 
refreshed approximately every 2-5 years to pick up on necessary changes and cross referencing. 
 
 
5.5 Map of Barnack and Pilsgate 
The following maps identify the settlement boundary and conservation area for Barnack and Pilsgate at 
the time of going to press. Please note that, from time to time, village boundaries do change so always 
check the latest version of the Proposals Map if in doubt.  

 

29



  16  

30



  17 

6. Villages – Glinton  
 
6.1 Introduction 
 
The current site of Glinton lies some 10m above the Welland flood plain and may be of Saxon origin.  
Certainly, from late Roman times, the climate became cooler and wetter and people moved off the flood 
plain to higher ground.  There is also a possible association with St Pega, who founded the monastery in 
nearby Peakirk. 
 
By Norman times, Glinton is recorded as a significant settlement and the feudal system would readily 
have been imposed on the flat landscape.  However, the only surviving medieval building is the 12th 
century Church of St Benedict, although the current 17th century manor house is reputedly on the site of 
a much earlier structure.  A glimpse of medieval Glinton can be gained by reference to the 1819 
Enclosure Map which shows the great open fields giving way to a typical patchwork of small square 
enclosed fields.   The form of the current village can probably be attributed to medieval times.  From the 
17th and 18th centuries, wealth generated from agriculture and loosening of the church’s  control of stone 
led to the building of a many of the substantial stone houses, cottages, barns and other farm buildings 
that form today’s village.  Many of these were set in grounds and closes enclosed by stone walls and it is 
the combination of 17th and 18th century stone buildings and stone walls grouped beside the twisting 
roads which meeting at the church green and give Glinton its special character and appearance. 
 
From the 19th century the frontage of Lincoln Road was developed to take advantage of passing traffic 
and a new road constructed eastwards to Helpston and Stamford.  The nearby railways brought Welsh 
slates and bricks and allowed agricultural produce to be exported.   Many of the topiary hedges and tree 
planting in and around this period also took place at this time.  At the turn of the century, photography 
became more widespread and the character of the village at 1900 can readily be judged from surviving 
prints.   It can be seen that the majority of buildings at this time were still from the 17th and 18th centuries 
and the village streets were far more informal in alignment and had wide grass verges with smaller 
thatched houses and cottages set on the highway edge, many gable end on.  Set back from the frontage 
were more important houses such as The Manor House and Scotts Farm, but these were in grounds 
with stone walls to the road frontage and along the alleys that ran from the road.   
 
In the 20th century, the tradition of stone buildings was abandoned, firstly with the immediately post war 
housing along existing road frontages, and subsequently with estate developments, for example off 
Welmore Road.   The second half of the 20th century also intensified infill development and new housing 
occupied almost all the small fields (closes) that previously existed between cottages.  By the end of the 
century almost every space within the village had been built up, so 21st century development has had to 
extend the traditional built up area of the village. 
 
It is likely that opportunities for infill development will continue to be sought and potential for further 
expansion of the village considered.   
 
It is therefore important that the research and analysis of the Conservation Area Appraisal and the 
experience gained in implementing the Village Design Statement is now brought to bear to ensure new 
development reinforces and enhances the special character of Glinton. 
 
6.2 Recent Studies and Policy Documents 
 
Glinton Conservation Area Appraisal.  February 2009 
This presents a detailed analysis of the historical factors that have combined to produce the present 
appearance and character of today’s village and its setting.  The Appraisal makes specific 
recommendations to help conserve and enhance the historic fabric, character and appearance of the 
village.   
 
Glinton Village Design Statement 2007 
The village design describes the distinct visual character of the village and surrounding countryside and 
sets out guidance to indicate how local character, distinctiveness and historic features can be protected 
and enhanced with future development. 
 

31



  18 

6.3 Specific Glinton Policy 
 

Having reviewed the recent studies and policies documents for Glinton, the following policy captures 
those elements where the planning system can make a positive contribution to meeting the aims and 
goals of those documents. As such, all planning applications for development in Glinton will be tested 
against General Village Policies BM1, BM2, BM3, WA1, WA2, WA3, WA4, and HG1, the following policy, 
as well as wider Peterborough-wide planning policies, in order to determine whether such development 
proposals should be granted permission.  

6.4 Evidence Base  

The documents Glinton Village Design Statement 2007 and Glinton Conservation Area Appraisal 2009 
have been used as the evidence base to form Policy SPD1.  The full documents can be viewed by 
clicking on the web links. The SPD will be refreshed approximately every 2-5 years to pick up on 
necessary changes and cross referencing. 
 
6.5 Map of Glinton  

The following map identifies the settlement boundary and conservation area for Glinton at the time of 
going to press. Please note that, from time to time, village boundaries do change so always check the 
latest version of the Proposals Map if in doubt.  

To be inserted  

 Contacts & Further Information 

If you have a query regarding any aspect of the Local Development Framework please email: 
planningpolicy@peterborough.gov.uk or telephone: 01733 863872. 

 
 

32



  19 

Policy Village Design SPD 1 – Glinton  

 
Development proposals in Glinton will be determined against the following criteria: 
 
Design Guidelines Within The Conservation Area 
VDS1 The design of any new building, extension or alteration should be sympathetic to its neighbours 

and in keeping with the village character. 
 
VDS2 Traditional building materials appropriate to the surrounding buildings must be used on  all 

buildings within the conservation area. 

VDS3 Architectural and historic style must be maintained on extensions to protect the  particular 
character of individual buildings 

VDS4 Local limestone should be used for all new buildings unless it can be demonstrated  to be 
inappropriate in the site context. 

 
VDS5 Except on listed buildings, where natural Collyweston slate should be retained, manufactured 

replica (Collyweston) slate may be considered. 
 
VDS6 Where existing windows are beyond repair, the replacement windows should match the period 

style of the original windows.  The use of traditional materials is preferred. 
 
VDS7 Wooden windows should always be used in preference to uPVC (particularly white), which is 

rarely acceptable 
VDS8 Wherever possible, new rooflights in listed buildings should be avoided where they are 

detrimental to the visual character of the building and locality. 
 
VDS9 Cast iron or cast aluminium rainwater goods should always be used in the repair of listed 

buildings.  On other buildings, good quality matching materials should be used in keeping with 
adjoining buildings (rainwater goods). 

 
VDS10 Replacement external doors should be of timber construction and match the original  period 

style.  
 
VDS11 Chimneys should be retained and repaired.  Chimneys should be a feature of any new  houses 

in the conservation area and aim to match the overall area style. 
 
VDS12 (The) design of extensions and outbuildings should take into account not only views…  from the 

road but also other public view points such as footpaths or open space. 
 
VDS13 The siting of new conservatories and the materials used should be particularly carefully 

considered. 
 
VDS14 Old walls, railings and hedges should be preserved and maintained where practicable. 
 
VDS15 Street furniture should be unobtrusive and road signs kept to a minimum in accordance  with 

legal traffic regulations. 
 
Design Guidelines Outside The Conservation Area 
VDS16 (For extensions to existing buildings), brickwork and stonework should match the existing 

materials of the main building style.  Replacement windows and doors should match those of the 
existing building or be in a style sympathetic to the building.   

 
VDS17 New buildings in Glinton will generally be sited on infill plots or small developments.  The design 

of new buildings should be sympathetic to neighbouring buildings, and in  keeping with the village 
environment. 

 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 9 

2 NOVEMBER 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Stephen Emeny, Governance Officer 
Contact Details – 01733 452347 or email stephen.emeny@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN – NOVEMBER 2010 TO FEBRUARY 2011 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities outlining the content 

of the Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Commission with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 

 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 

1 NOVEMBER 2010 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

3
7



 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS - 1 NOVEMBER 2010 TO 28 FEBRUARY 2011 AB 
 

During the period from 1 November 2010 To 28 February 2011 Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set 
out below.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 
and/or have a significant impact on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
This Forward Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions and it will be updated on a monthly basis.  The dates detailed within the Plan 
are subject to change and those items amended or identified for decision more than one month in advance will be carried over to forthcoming plans.  
Each new plan supersedes the previous plan.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form which appears at 
the back of the Plan and submitted to Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
01733 452483). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452447. 
 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed and the papers listed on the Plan can 
be viewed free of charge although there will be a postage and photocopying charge for any copies made. All decisions will be posted on the Council's 
website: www.peterborough.gov.uk.   If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' outlined in this Plan, please submit 
them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service departments 
are incorporated within this plan. 
 

NEW ITEMS THIS MONTH: 
 
Traffic Signals Maintenance Contract 
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (November and December) 
Council Tax Base 2011/12 
Museum Redevelopment Project 
Award of Contract for Extension at Leighton Primary School 
Award of Contract for Extension at the Beeches Primary School 
Termination of Transitions Service Contract with YMCA 
 

 
 

3
8



 
 
 

NOVEMBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Coneygree Lodge, 
Coneygree Road - 
KEY/01NOV/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director 
– Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Coneygree Lodge at 
Coneygree Road. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made 
 

3
9



 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of land adjacent to 
Pupil Referral Unit 
(former Honeyhill School) 
Paston Ridings - 
KEY/02NOV/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director 
– Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
land adjacent to the former 
Honeyhill School. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

The Future of 
Peterborough Community 
Services (the provider 
arm of the Primary Care 
Trust) - KEY/03NOV/10 
For Cabinet to approve 
proposals from the Primary 
Care Trust regarding the 
future of Peterborough 
Community Services, 
including adult social care. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Scrutiny 
Commission for 
Health Issues 

Internal 
Departments and 
Relevant 
Stakeholders as 
appropriate. 

 
 
 

Denise Radley 
Executive Director of Adult 
Social Services & 
Performance 
Tel: 01733 758444 
denise.radley@peterborough.
gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

4
0



 

Drug and alcohol misuse 
services for children and 
young people - 
KEY/04NOV/10 
Provide an integrated drug 
and alcohol misuse service 
offering early intervention, 
prevention, targeted and 
specialist interventions to 
targeted groups of young 
people in Peterborough.   

 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services, 
Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Health Issues Relevant Internal 
Stakeholders 

 
 

Pam Setterfield 
Assistant Head of Children & 
Families Services (0-13) 
Tel: 01733 863897 
pam.setterfield@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Traffic Signals 
Maintenance Contract - 
KEY/05NOV/10 
Novation of contract from 
Traffic Signals UK Limited to 
Telent Technologies Services 
Limited 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
departments 

 
 

Susan Fitzwilliam 
ITS Development Officer 
Tel: 01733 452441 
susan.fitzwilliam@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Scheme of works at  the 
Triangle, New England - 
Award of Contract - 
KEY/06NOV/10 
Award of contract to construct 
Triangle Safety Scheme 
through Midlands Highways 
Alliance (MHA) – Medium 
Schemes Framework 1 (MSF) 
contract. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Environment 
Capital 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Stuart Mounfield 
Senior Engineer 
Tel: 01733 453598 
stuart.mounfield@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

Public Report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
1



 

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy - 
KEY/07NOV/10 
Agree actions for dealing with 
grant reductions in 2010-11 
financial year. Draft budget 
proposals and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to 2015/16 
to be agreed as a basis for 
consultation. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Report forms the 
basis of 
consultation with 
stakeholders, prior 
to further 
consideration by 
Cabinet in 
February 2011 and 
subsequent 
endorsement at full 
Council. 

 
 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Review of Charges for 
Allotments - 
KEY/08NOV/10 
To agree the charges for 
the use of Allotments for 
the forthcoming year. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant ward 
members, 
internal 
Departments and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Commercial Services Director 
 
 
 
 

Public Report to 
be available 
from the 
Governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made 
 

Award of Contract for 
Extension at the Beeches 
Primary School - 
KEY/09NOV/10 
Award of Contract for 
Extension to increase pupil 
numbers at the Beeches 
Primary School, following 
competitive tendering process. 

 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
external 
stakeholders. 

 
 

Alison Chambers 
Asset Development Officer 
 
alison.chambers@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
2



 

Award of Contract for 
Extension at Leighton 
Primary School - 
KEY/10NOV/10 
Award of Contract for 
Extension to increase pupil 
numbers at Leighton Primary 
School, following competitive 
tendering process. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
relevant 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Alison Chambers 
Asset Development Officer 
 
alison.chambers@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Contract Award - Adult 
Drug Treatment Services 
- KEY/11NOV/10 
To award the contracts for the 
delivery of Adult Drug 
Treatment Services 
 

 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Community 
Cohesion, Safety 
and Women’s 
Enterprise 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
departments as 
appropriate 
Safer Peterborough 
Partnership 

 
 

Gary Goose 
Community Safety Strategic 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863780 
gary.goose@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

Termination of 
Transitions Service 
Contract with YMCA - 
KEY/12NOV/10 
To authorise termination of the 
contract due to reduction in 
funding. 

 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
departments and 
external 
stakeholders. 

 
 

Oliver Hayward 
Commissioning Officer - 
Aiming High 
Tel: 01733 863910 
oliver.hayward@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
3



 

Floating Support 
Contract: Cross Keys 
Homes Extension of 
Contract – KEY/13NOV/10 
Extension of contract to 
provide a generic floating 
support service for clients 
with housing support 
needs. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing, 
Neighbourhoods 
and Planning 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Internal 
Departments and 
Relevant 
Stakeholders as 
appropriate. 

 
 
 

Belinda Child 
Housing Strategic Manager 
 
belinda.child@peterborough.g
ov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Passenger Transport 
Framework Tender – 
KEY/14NOV/10 
Requirements for special 
educational needs and 
mainstream school 
contract. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills 
and University 
 

Creating 
Opportunities and 
Tackling 
Inequalities 

Internal 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Cathy Summers 
Team Manager - Passenger 
Transport Contracts and 
Planning 
 
cathy.summers@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 
 

Public report 
will be available 
from the 
Governance 
Team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Security Framework 
Contract – KEY/15NOV/10 
Award of framework 
contract split into two lots: 
security services such as 
manned security guarding, 
patrolling, key holding and 
alarm response for PCC 
sites; and cash collection 
and cash in transit services, 
delivering services for the 
council such as collecting 
cash from parking meters 
and banking it securely. 
 

November 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Matthew Rains 
P2P Manager 
Tel: 01733 317996 
matthew.rains@peterborough
.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

 

4
4



 
 

DECEMBER 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION MAKER RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

REPORTS 

Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD – ‘Preferred 
Options’ version - 
KEY/01DEC/10 
To agree draft planning 
policies, for subsequent public 
consultation 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 

External as 

appropriate. 

 
 
 

Richard Kay 
Strategic Planning Manager 
 
richard.kay@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Village Design 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (Draft version 
for consultation) - 
KEY/02DEC/10 
To agree a draft SPD, for 
subsequent public 
consultation. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth / Rural 
Communities 

Internal and 
External as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Kay 
Strategic Planning Manager 
 
richard.kay@peterborough.go
v.uk 
 

A public report 
will be made 
available from 
the governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
made. 
 

Museum Redevelopment 
Project - KEY/03DEC/10 
To authorise the award of the 
contract for the Museum 
Redevelopment project. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Culture, Recreation 
and Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Consultation will 
take place with 
relevant internal 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
5



 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Land and 
Buildings - Vawser Lodge 
Thorpe Road - 
KEY/04DEC/10 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with 
the Solicitor to the Council, 
Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude the 
sale of Vawser Lodge 

 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Council Tax Base 2011/12 
- KEY/05DEC/10 
To agree the calculation of the 
council tax base for 2010/11  

 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken 
 

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy - 
KEY/06DEC/10 
Consider Local Government 
Finance settlement and agree 
updates to draft budget 
proposals and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to 2015/16 
if necessary 
 

December 
2010 
 

Cabinet 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
Head of Strategic Finance 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.Pilsworth@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

4
6



 

Peterborough Local 
Investment Plan - 
KEY/07DEC/10 
Document for submission 
to the Homes and 
Communities Agency, 
drawn largely from the 
Integrated Development 
Programme (Adopted 
December 2009). The LIP 
is the first stage towards 
applying for funding from 
the HCA for primarily 
housing-related project 
aspirations in the City. 
 

December 
2010 
 

Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Growth, Strategic 
Planning and 
Economic 
Development 
 

Sustainable 
Growth 

Internal and 
External 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Andrew Edwards 
Head of Peterborough 
Delivery Partnership 
Tel: 01733 384530 
andrew.edwards@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 
 

A public report 
will be available 
from the 
governance 
team one week 
before the 
decision is 
taken. 
 

 
 

      

JANUARY 

THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO KEY DECISIONS SCHEDULED FOR JANUARY. 

 
 

FEBRUARY 

THERE ARE CURRENTLY NO KEY DECISIONS SCHEDULED FOR FEBRUARY. 

4
7



 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPARTMENT  Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 

Communications 
Strategic Growth and Development Services 
Legal and Democratic Services 
Policy and Research 
Economic and Community Regeneration 
Housing Strategy 
Drug Intervention Programme and Drug and Alcohol Team 
HR Business Relations, Training & Development, Occupational Health & Reward & Policy 
 
COMMERCIAL  SERVICES DEPARTMENT  Nursery Lane, Fengate, Peterborough  PE1 5BG 

Property Services 

Building & Maintenance 

Streetscene and Facilities 

Finance and Support Services 
 
STRATEGIC RESOURCES DEPARTMENT  Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 

Finance 

Internal Audit  

Information Communications Technology (ICT) 

Business Transformation 

Performance and Programme Management 

Strategic Property  

Human Resources (HR Support) 

Customer Services 

 

CHILDRENS’ SERVICES DEPARTMENT  Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB 

Families and Communities 

Commissioning and Performance 

Learning 

 

4
8



 
 
OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT  Bridge House, Town Bridge, PE1 1HB 

 

Planning Services (Planning Delivery, Building Control ) 

Environment Transport and Engineering Services  (Infrastructure Planning & Delivery,  Network Management, Transport & Sustainable Environment) 

City Operations  (Resilience, CCTV, Car Parking, Markets, Health & Safety) 

Neighbourhood Services (Community Engagement, Community Safety, Business Regulation, Housing) 

Operations Business Support (Finance, Economic Participation, Business Support)  

  
 

4
9



5
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\9\AI00004904\$2rqrbr5s.doc 

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
PRIORITIES & WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 

Item Progress 

Peterborough Women’s Enterprise Centre Listed on Agenda for 13 July 2010 

Passenger Transport Framework Tender Listed on Agenda for 13 July 2010 

Floating Support Contract: Cross Keys Homes Extension of Contract Listed on Agenda for 13 July 2010 

13 July 2010 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 5 
July) 

Rural Housing Strategy 2010-2013 Moved to 7 September 2010 

 

Safe and Vibrant Rural Centres and Communities Listed on Agenda for 7 September 2010 7 September 2010   

(Papers to be 
despatched on 27 
August) 

Rural Economic Development Listed on Agenda for 7 September 2010 

 

2 November 2010 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 25 
October) 

Planning Policy & Strategy 

1. Supplementary Planning Document – Preparation 

2. Rural Housing Delivery Partnership 

3. The use of the Community Land Trust 

4. Site Allocations Document 

5. Emerging national initiatives, such as Local Housing Trusts 

6. Rural Exception Sites 

7. Rural Housing Strategy 2010-2013 – 6 month progress report (To 
scrutinise the progress of the Rural Housing Strategy six months 
after its adoption, prior to the report being submitted to Cabinet for its 

Listed on Agenda for 2 November 2010 

 

5
1



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\9\AI00004904\$2rqrbr5s.doc 

Meeting Date 
 

Item Progress 

consideration) 

Contact Officer: Richard Kay, Planning Policy and Strategy Manager 

Women’s Enterprise Centre – Engagement with Women in Rural 
Communities 

Contact Officer:  Anne Senior/Maxine Grimes, Economic Participation 
Programme 

To consider the outcomes of the engagement with women in rural 
communities. 

Listed on Agenda for 2 November 2010 

 

Speed Limits in Rural Areas  

Contact Officer: Peter Tebb, Peter Tebb, Team Manager – Network, 
Environment, Transport & Engineering Services 

To receive a report on the Government’s current position in relation to 
lowering the speed limit on rural roads to 50 mph and work Council has 
undertaken in relation to this matter, and a full update on the implementation 
of 20 mph speed limits around rural schools. 

Listed on Agenda for 2 November 2010 

 

Leisure and Tourism in Rural Areas 

Contact Officer(s): Annette Joyce, City Operations Manager (Tourism) 
Kevin Tighe, Chief Executive, Vivacity (Leisure) 

To scrutinise work being done to the enhancement and promotion of the 
rural environment for leisure and tourism activities. 

Moved to 11 January 2011 

Local Transport Plan (LTP) 

Contact Officer: Mark Speed 

To scrutinise the Local Transport Plan and to make any necessary 
recommendations prior to its adoption in April 2011. 

This item will be discussed at a joint Scrutiny 
meeting in January 2011. 

 

5
2



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\9\AI00004904\$2rqrbr5s.doc 

Meeting Date 
 

Item Progress 

Local Economic Assessment (LEA) 

Neil Darwin, Director of Economic Development, Opportunity Peterborough 

To scrutinise the draft Local Area Assessment during its consultation phase. 

 

Public Open Space Strategy 

Contact Officer: David Denson, Head of Operations 

 

Tree and Woodland Strategy 

Contact Officer: David Denson, Head of Operations 

 

11 January 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 31 
December 2010) 

Play Strategy 

Contact Officer: David Denson, Head of Operations 

 

 

  

  

8 March 2011 

(Papers to be 
despatched on 28 
February)   

 

 

5
3



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\9\AI00004904\$2rqrbr5s.doc 

Priorities for 2010-2011 as determined at the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities meeting held on 8 June 2010 
 

PRIORITY ACTION SUCCESS CRITERIA 

Creating Strong and Supportive 
Communities 

Making villages safe To continue to reduce car speeds down to 50 mph along rural roads 
 

  To develop cycleways and quiet roads 
 
To monitor the implementation of the 20 mph speed limits for rural schools 
 

 Empowering local communities To continue to support the work of the Neighbourhood Councils 
 

 Building pride in Peterborough A visible presence in the rural areas 
 

Substantial and Truly 
Sustainable Growth 

Increasing economic prosperity To plan for rural economic development, eg. farmers’ markets, leisure events such as the Bainton 
Literary Festival which kickstart other development 
 

 Creating better places to live To encourage ‘affordable’ housing to meet the needs of villagers 
 

  End to speculative tacked-on estates 
 

 Infrastructure of the future An imaginative vision of what the villages could be like in ten years time 
 

 Safe and vibrant city and other 
centres 

To work closely with the Cambridgeshire Constabulary to encourage patrolling and a visible police 
presence in rural areas 
 

Creating the UK’s Environment 
Capital 

Conserving natural resources To encourage the enhancing of the rural environment and opening it up for leisure and tourism 
 

 Increasing the use of sustainable 
transport 

To encourage cycling or use of busses, call connect and other sustainable transport provision 
 

 Growing the Environmental 
Business Sector 

To encourage rural business 
 
To support the ‘Women’s Business Centre’ to work in rural areas 
 

Creating Opportunities and 
Tackling Inequalities 

Regenerating neighbourhoods Investment in rural infrastructure 
 

 Improved health  To recognise what health provision there is in the rural areas 
 

 Improving education and skills To review education and training for rural business 
 
 
 

5
4


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Responses to Recommendations Made by the Commission
	7 September 2010 - Rural Commission - Recommendation to Cllr Holdich and C Summers

	5 Peterborough Women's Enterprise Centre - Engagement with Women in Rural Communities
	6 Update on Speed Limits in Rural Areas
	7 Planning and Policy Strategy in Rural Areas
	8 Forward Plan
	11. November 2010 to February 2011 Forward Plan

	9 Work Programme

